GUIDANCE ON COUNCIL PROCEDURE

Addressing the	(Full details in Part 4a of the Council's Constitution) Members must address the meeting through the Chairman. When the
Addressing the Council	Chairman wishes to speak during a debate, any Member speaking at the time must stop. The Chairman will decide whether he or she prefers Members to stand or sit when addressing the Council.
Minutes	Any comments or questions should be limited to the accuracy of the minutes only
Quorum	Quorum is one quarter of the whole number of Members. If there is not a quorum present, the meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If a date is not fixed, the remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary meeting.
Declarations of Interest	Members should state clearly in which item they have an interest and the nature of the interest (i.e. personal; personal & prejudicial; or pecuniary). If in doubt, seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.
Announcements	These should be brief and to the point and are for information only – no debate/decisions
Questions from the public (Notice must have been given in writing to the Chief Executive by 12.00 three working days before the meeting)	Directed to Leader, Cabinet Member or Chairman of an ordinary committee and relevant to the business of the meeting. 2 minutes in total to put the question. Appropriate Member to reply. Questioner may ask one supplementary question. Member to reply (max 2 minutes unless Chairman consents to a longer period). Overall time limit for questions of 15 minutes or six questions, whichever is greater. The questioner must be present. If a question cannot be dealt with at the meeting (lack of time or absence of relevant Member), a written reply to be given. No discussion <u>but</u> any Member may move that a matter raised by a question is referred to Cabinet or committee. If seconded, no discussion – vote taken.
Cabinet recommendations (see also rules of debate)	 Leader/Cabinet Member presents and moves recommendation(s) – seconder required. Members may: ask a question on the item under consideration – max 2 minutes; and/or make a statement – max 5 minutes.
Questions from Members on Notice (Notice must have been given in writing to the Monitoring Officer by 12.00 two working days before the meeting)	 These are directed to the Chairman, Leader, Cabinet Member or chairman of any committee: 2 minutes maximum for initial question 2 minutes maximum for the response 2 minutes maximum for a supplementary question 2 minutes maximum for a response to the supplementary question 5 minutes maximum for the questioner to make a final statement in response, if they wish If an oral reply is not convenient (e.g. too lengthy) a written answer may be circulated later. No discussion. Maximum of 30 minutes overall for questions and answers.

Rules of debate	The Chairman controls debate and normally follows these rules but Chairman's interpretation, application or waiver is final.
	 No speeches until a proposal has been moved (mover may explain purpose) and seconded Chairman may require motion to be written down and handed to him/her before it is discussed Seconder may speak immediately after mover or later in the debate Speeches must relate to the question under discussion or a personal explanation or a point of order (max 5 minutes) A Member may not speak again except: On an amendment To move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since he/she last spoke If first speech was on an amendment, to speak on the main issue (whether or not the amendment was carried) In exercise of a right of reply. Mover of motion at end of debate on original motion and any amendments (may not otherwise speak on amendment). Mover of amendment has no right of reply. On a point of order – must relate to an alleged breach of Council Procedure Rules or law. Chairman must hear the point of order immediately. The ruling of the Chairman on the matter will be final. Personal explanation – relating to part of an earlier speech by the Member which may appear to have been misunderstood. The Chairman's ruling on the admissibility of the personal explanation will be final. Amendments to motions must be to: Refer the matter to an appropriate body/individual for (re)consideration Leave out and/or insert or add others (as long as this does not negate the motion) One amendment at a time to be moved, discussed and decided upon. A member may alter a motion that he/she has moved with the consent of the meeting and seconder (such consent to be signified without discussion). A Member may alter a motion that he/she has moved with the consent of the meeting and seconder (such consent to be signified without discussion).
Voting	 Any matter will be decided by a simple majority of those voting, by show of hands or if no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting unless: Two Members request a recorded vote A recorded vote is required by law. Any Member may request their vote for, against or abstaining to be
	recorded in the minutes. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman will have a second or casting vote (whether or not he or she has already voted on the issue).